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Bef ore: Judge Wei sberger
Statement of the Case

These cases are before nme based upon petitions for
assessnment of civil penalty filed by the Secretary (Petitioner),
al l egi ng violations of various mandatory standards set forth in
Vol une 30 of the Code of Federal Regul ations. Pursuant to a
notice of hearing, issued on Novenber 16, 1990, these cases were
schedul ed for hearing on Decenber 18, 1990. On Decenber 11, 1990,
a nessage was received fromcounsel for Petitioner, indicating
that the parties settled these cases. On January 14, 1991
Petitioner filed a joint nmotion to approve settlenent. On January
18, 1991, in a conference call | initiated between counsel for
both parties, it was explained that, inasmuch as the notion did

not contain sufficient facts to support the proposed settlenents,
it could not be granted. On February 4, 1991, the parties filed a
suppl enent to the notion to approve settlement. On February 25,

1991,

an order was issued denying the notion to
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approve settlenment on the ground that neither the notion nor the
suppl enment provided any facts in support of the appropriateness
of the proposed penalties. Subsequent to notice, these cases were
schedul ed for hearing, and were subsequently heard in Tazewel |
Tennessee, on June 18, and 19, 1991. Robert W Rhea, Robert E
Jones, and Elijah Myers, testified for Petitioner. The operator
(Respondent) did not call any witnesses, nor did it offer any
docunent ary evi dence.

Fi ndi ngs of Fact and Di scussion

. Docket No. KENT 91-356
Order No. 3377046

On January 18, 1990, a section 104(d)(1) order was issued to
Respondent, alleging a violation of a nandatory standard at its
No. 3 Mne. There were no intervening clean inspections between
January 18, 1990 and March 8, 1990.

On March 8, 1990, Robert W Rhea, an MSHA | nspector,
i nspected the belt at the 001 section at Respondent's No. 3 M ne.
He testified that there was no guard on the tail piece of the
roller. According to Rhea, the roller in question is 24 inches in
di aneter and holds the belt down to the tail piece. He indicated
that production was in process, and a scoop was dunping coal on
the belt when he arrived. He observed a nmetal structure against a
rib. The section foreman, Dwayne Nicely, informed himthat this
structure was the guard

Rhea observed one enpl oyee breaking rock with a sl edge
hamrer approximately 10 feet fromthe tail roller. He indicated
that the height of the coal seam being between 42 and 48 inches,
and the fact that the floor in the area in question contained
| oose coal and rock, nade it difficult to nobve around. In
essence, it was his opinion that a person working in the area
m ght come in contact with the noving roller, causing a serious
injury. Rhea issued a section 104(d)(1) order, alleging a
violation of 30 CF. R 0O 75.1722.

As pertinent, section 75.1722, supra, provides that, in
essence, exposed novi ng machi ne parts which may be contacted by
persons and which may cause injury shall be guarded, and that
guards shall be securely in place while the nmachinery is being
oper at ed.

Respondent did not proffer any w tnesses or docunentary
evi dence. Based upon the testinony of Rhea, | conclude that the
tail roller in question, was not guarded, and this condition
exposed noving parts that m ght be contacted by persons working
in the area, especially considering the | ow height of the seam
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and the uneven surface of the floor. Accordingly, it has been
establ i shed that Respondent violated section 75.1722, supra.

According to Rhea, any |oose clothing, gloves, tools, or
battery light cord, worn by a miner, comng in contact with the
unguarded belt, would cause the mner to be pulled into the
roller, causing disnenbernment or death. Considering the proxinmty
of the mners working in the area to the unguarded tail roller
and the | ow height of the roof, and the surface of the floor
contai ning | oose coal and rocks, | conclude that it has been
established that there was a reasonable |ikelihood of a hazard of
contact with the noving tail roller, and a reasonable |ikelihood
that such a hazard would have resulted in an injury of a
reasonably serious nature. Hence, | conclude that it has been
established that the violation herein was significant and
substantial. (See, Mthies Coal Conpany, 6 FMSHRC 1, 3-4 (1984)).

According to Rhea, on "numerous occasions," he had cited the
same violation and discussed it with the section foreman, Dwayne
Nicely (Tr. 37, 38). He said that during two or three inspections
bet ween January 18, 1990, and March 8, 1990, he talked with
Ni cel y about the guarding of the tail piece. He indicated that
when he issued the citation on March 8, 1990, he asked a m ner at
the tail roller whether he was aware of the roller and whether he
t hought that it needed a guarding, and the mner indicated in the
affirmative and stated that the guarding was at the rib. Hence,
find that Respondent was aware of the need for the guarding at
the location in issue, and was al so aware that the guardi ng was
not in place. There are no facts to explain why Respondent did
not replace the guard. | conclude thus that the violation
resulted from Respondent's aggravated conduct. Accordingly,
find that the violation herein to be the result of Respondent's
unwarrantable failure. (See, Enery Mning Corp., 9 FMSHRC 1997
(1987)).

Considering the gravity of the violation, and its degree of
negligence, as testified to ny Rhea, and considering the
remai ning statutory factors, | conclude that a penalty herein of
$800 i s appropriate.

b. Citation No. 3377047

Rhea testified, in essence, that on March 8, 1990, he
observed a cavity in the roof of the |ast open crosscut in the
No. 3 entry. He described the cavity as 20 to 30 feet wide, 20 to
30 feet long, and approximately 20 feet in depth. He said that
such a cavity was evidence that a rock fall had occurred.
According to Rhea, Nicely indicated to himthat a roof fall had
occurred that week i.e., the week of March 8th, which had
entrapped a roof bolting mahcine. Rhea said that Nicely told him
that the roof fall had not been reported. Rhea issued a citation
alleging a violation of 30 C.F. R 0 50.10 which in essence
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requires an operator to "i mredi ately" contact MSHA "if an
accident occurs.” 30 C.F.R 0O 50.2(h)(a) defines accident, as
pertinent, as ". . . an unplanned roof or rib fall in active
wor ki ngs that inpairs ventilation or inpedes passage;"” "active
workings" is a termdefined in 30 CF. R 0O 75.2(g)(4) as "any
place in a coal mne where mners are normally required to work
or travel".

Based on the testinony of Rhea that has not been rebutted or

i npeached, | find that a roof fall had occurred which was not
reported. There is no evidence that this roof fall was planned,
and since it entrapped a roof-bolting machine, | conclude that it

occurred in a area where nminers were required to work and did

i npede passage. Accordingly, since this roof fall had not been
reported, | conclude that Respondent did violate section 50. 10,
supra.

Taki ng into account the significant anount of the rock fal
as evidenced by the cavity in the roof observed by Rhea, and the
fact that Respondent had know edge of the roof fall as evidenced
by Nicely's statement to Rhea that efforts had been nade to

renmove a bolter entrapped by the roof fall, and the fact that no
evi dence was adduced by Respondent in order to nmitigate its
negl i gence, | conclude that the level of its negligence in regard

to the violation herein was high. Rhea testified to the hazards
m ners were exposed to occasioned by their having to work to
retrieve the entrapped bolter under an area without roof
supports. However, Petitioner did not adduce evi dence through
Rhea or any other witness or document, with regard to the gravity
of the violation herein, i.e., failure to report a roof fall as
opposed to hazards attendant upon the roof fall itself. I find
that a penalty of $400 is appropriate for the violation

c. Oders Nos. 3377049, 3277050, 3377051, and 3377052

Accordi ng to Rhea, when he examined the No. 1 entry on March
8, 1990, he observed hillseans approximately 50 to 75 feet from
the coal face, and covering an area of the roof of approximtely
30 by 25 feet. Rhea stated that the width of the hill seam varied
froma "crack," to, upto 3 to 4 inches (Tr. 128). In this
connection, he said that three of the hillseans were 3 to 4
i nches wi de. Rhea defined hillseanms as vertical fractures in the
r oof .

According to Rhea, the area in question was supported only
by bolts. There were no cross bars, steel straps, or cribs. Rhea
i ssued an order alleging a violation of the roof control plan
("the plan").

In the No. 2 entry Rhea observed nore than two hillseans in
the | ast open crosscut. He said they were approxi mately the sanme
type and width as those he testified to in the No. 1 entry,
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(Order No. 3377049, infra). He indicated that the only roof
supports were roof bolts.

Rhea al so observed an area of a hillseam 8 feet w de by 20
feet in the No. 2 entry that was totally unsupported. This area
was | ocated one crosscut inby the section dunping point, and was
100 feet outhy the hillseams he had observed at the | ast open
crosscut.

Rhea said he al so observed hill seams in the No. 4 entry
i nby the |l ast open crosscut, and their condition was the sanme as
in entries one and two. Rhea issued separate orders for failure
to follow the roof plan in entries 1, 2,(Footnote 1) and 4
respectively.

Par agraph 3 of page 5 of the plan (Government Exhibit 5),
specifically provides that when "hillseans" are encountered,
cross beans or steel straps are to be used. |Inasnmuch as Rhea's
testinony that there were no beans or straps in areas of
hill seans, has not been inpeached or rebutted, | concl ude that
Respondent herein did violate its roof-control plan in entries 1
2, and 4.

According to the uncontradicted testi nony of Rhea, al
haul age has to go through the area in question in order to get to
the face, and, hence, mners are required to travel in the area
in question. He said that there was a danger of a roof failure
where the hillseans intersect, and an injury was reasonably
likely to occur, considering the fact that there was a roof fal
inthe No. 3 entry, and the fact that the hillseans were
"numerous," (Tr. 123) and the fact that the roof conditions
stretched across the | ast open crosscut. Rhea also said that the
conbi nation of hillseans across all the entries increased the
danger of a roof fall especially considering that only 50 feet
separated the entries. Should a roof fall occur, there would be a
reasonabl e |ikelihood of a injury of a reasonable serious nature
due to the fact that, at a any one tinme, according to Rhea, four
m ners are present in the area. Inasnuch as Rhea's testinony has
not been contradicted or rebutted | conclude, that it establishes
that the violations herein are significant and substantial (See,
Mat hi es, supra).

Rhea indicated that the hillseans were obvi ous and that
wat er was dripping out of them Rhea related that he discussed
the condition with Nicely who indicated that he was aware of what
was required in the ventilation plan, and acknow edged that he
had hillseam problems in all areas of the section. Rhea testified
that Nicely was sure the section was going to be nmoved within the
next few days, due to the massive roof fall that had occurred in
entry No. 3 over the weekend. There is no evidence,
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however, that Respondent abandoned these entries and that they
were no | onger working sections. Taking into account the extent
of the hillseans, their width, and the fact that water was

dri pping out of them | conclude that Respondent was negligent to
a high degree in not having conplied the terns its roof plan
requiring the provision of additional support to the area in
question. This is especially true inasmuch as Respondent did not
adduce any facts which would tend to mtigate its negligence. Due
to the fact that the hill seanms were not supported in the fashion
requi red by the roof control plan, which could result in a roof
fall causing serious injuries to mners, | conclude that the

viol ations herein were of a high level of gravity. | find that a
penalty of $800 is proper for each violation found herein.

(Foot note 2)

d. Citation No. 3391846

MSHA | nspector Robert E. Jones, testified that on March 20,
1990, he inspected the el evated roadway, on the surface of
Respondent's No. 3 Mne. He testified that this roadway, which is
the only access to the mne, is 6 mles in length, and that 3
mles of this road, go up a steep grade which he estimted as
being nmore than 15 percent "in places” (Tr. 209). He said that he
observed truck traffic on the road.

Jones testified that he observed no berns at "internmttent”
(Tr. 213) locations. He said that in narrow places where the road
had been washed out, there were no berms or guard rails. He said
that the road bed is flat, and that as it travels up to the mne
there is a ditch on the right side of the road, and a "outer bank
or the hill side" on the left side that slopes down (Tr. 217).
Jones issued a citation alleging a violation of 30 CF. R 0O
77.1605(k), which provides as pertinent, that berns or guards
shall be provided on the outer bank of elevated roadways. Based
on Jones' testinony that had been neither rebutted nor
contradicted, | find that Respondent herein did violate section
77.1605(k), supra.

Essentially, according to Jones, as a consequence of the
| ack of berms, an accident is reasonably likely to occur due to
the grade of the road and its steep banks. He said that if a
truck left the roadway due to the absence of berns, and went over
the side of the hill, "there wouldn't be any hope" (Tr. 215). In
this connection he indicated that he also took into account the
wi dth of the road bed which he indicated averaged about 15 feet,
but that in some it was not nore than 10 to 12 feet wi de.
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Jones, in his testinmony, did not specifically indicate the
| ocation of the areas that did not have a berm Nor did he
describe their location with reference to any drop off fromthe
roadway. Nor did his testinony specify the extent and | ength of
any area in the roadway that did not have a berm Accordingly, |
conclude that it has not been established that the violation
herein was significant and substanti al

Taking into account that the violation herein mght lead to
a truck running off road and seriously injuring personnel inside,
I find that the violation was of a noderate |evel of gravity. |
find Respondent slightly negligent in that Rhea conceded t hat
Respondent did a good job with the bermand that due to the
weat her the berns are hard to nmaintain, although "it could be
done" (Tr. 219). | conclude that a penalty of $100 is appropriate
for this violation.

Il. Docket No. KENT 90-399
a. Order No. 3377161

On April 12, 1990, Jones issued Order No. 3377161 all eging,
in essence, that the deluge water spray systemon the No. 2 belt
woul d not operate properly when tested, and hence was in
vi ol ation of section 75.1100-3 which provides that al
firefighting equi pnent shall be maintained in a usable and
operative condition. (Footnote 3)

The system at issue contains sprays |ocated approximtely 8
feet apart, which are activated only by exposure to heat, and can
only be tested in that fashion. Water pressure is supplied by way
of a punp which is |ocated outside the m ne

Jones indicated that a plug, 1-inch in diameter, had been
renmoved fromthe bar connecting the spray system "together", (Tr.
236) and water was com ng out of the hole where the plug had been
removed. Jones concluded that accordingly, pressure was weakened
all along the line. However, on cross-exam nation, Jones
i ndicated that there was pressure in the system He conceded that
the only way to know whet her the system works, is to open the
valve at the end of the 50 foot line. He indicated that he did
not open this valve, nor were the sprays tested by applying heat.

Hence, although it is possible that as a consequence of the
pl ug havi ng bei ng renmoved there was weakened pressure, | find
that it has not been established that the systemwas in an
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i noperative condition and was not usable. Hence, | conclude that
it has not been established that the Respondent herein violated
section 75.1100-3.

b. Citation No. 3377351

Jones testified, in essence, that an update of Respondent's
dust-control plan was due to be submtted April 6, 1990. He said
but that the MSHA mine file for the subject mne was checked by
himon May 30, 1990, and the record did not indicate that such a
pl an was submitted. Respondent did not assert or adduce any
evi dence that such a plan was submtted

30 CF.R 0O 75.316, provides that a dust-control plan ".
shall be reviewed by the operator and the Secretary at | east
every 6 months." On the record before me, | conclude that the
operator did not subnmit an updated plan at the 6-nonth due date.
Accordingly, it was not possible for the Secretary to revi ew such
a plan with the operator, and hence, the operator herein violated
section 75.316.

Jones indi cated, however, that Respondent herein did have a
valid plan with projections extendi ng 6-nmonths beyond My, 1990
and that the plan indicated good ventilation. Also on
cross-exam nation, it was elicited that at the date the citation
was i ssued, Respondent was in the process of mining out, and that
on June 22, 1990, the m ne was seal ed. Taking these factors into
account, | conclude that a penalty of $20 is appropriate for this
vi ol ati on.

[11. Docket No. KENT 90-400 (Order No. 3376874)

In the 001 section of Respondent's No. 3 Mne, coal is
renoved by way of pillar extraction. The sequence in which coa
is mned by taking a 10 by 20 foot cut out of a 40 by 40 foot
pillar, is illustrated in Governnent Exhibit 16. According to
Rhea, an operator using such a systemis pernitted to either cut
in sequences fromright to left as illustrated on Governnent
Exhibit 16, or fromleft to right. The roof-control plan, (the
pl an") states that, "all pillars will be mned fromthe sane
direction" (Governnent Exhibit 5, page 13). The plan illustrates
two parallel rows, each containing four breaker pillars, along
with four posts in a diagonal line, all to be placed in the | ast
open crosscut, outby the left split of a pillar that is being
mned. In this connection, the plan provides as follows "breaker
tinmbers to be installed before mning of correspondi ng m ning
sequence nunber." (Exhibit P.13, supra).

On April 17, 1990, when the section was inspected by Rhea,
production was in process, the first in the series of cuts had
al ready been taken fromthe four pillars in the section, and
breaker tinbers had been installed outby the left sided split of
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bl ocks one and four as depicted in the plan (Exhibit 5, page 13,
supra). There were no breaker tinmbers installed in the |ast open
crosscut outby the left side split of pillars one and three in
the position depicted in the plan, i.e., outby the left side
split with the row of tinbers furthest to the left in aline with
the left side of the left split. However, the same nunber of post
called for in the plan, had been installed in the |ast open
crosscut, outby the right split of pillars one and three,
respectively. Rhea al so observed haul age traffic going in an
outby direction, down entries two and four

Rhea issued an order alleging a violation of the plan, "
inthat the No. 1 & 2 pillar block (sic) and the No. 4 & 5

pillar blocks were being mned fromone roadway." In this
connection, the order further alleges, with regard to the plan,
that it ". . . stipulates in sketch No. 8, page 13, that one

pillar split shall be mned fromone roadway only."

Page 13 of the plan (Exhibit 5, supra) does not contain any
| anguage specifically stipulating that a split shall be mined
from one roadway only. Indeed there is no | anguage specifically
relating mning froma pillar to any specific roadway. The only
| anguage in the plan with regard to the direction in which the
pillars are to be mned consists of the stipulation on Page 13,
supra, that the pillars can be mned fromeither side and that
"all pillars will be mined fromthe same direction." (Enphasis
added) Rhea indicated the path to be taken by a mner, in cutting
pillars one, two, three, and four, going fromright to left, and
utilizing breaker tinmbers as illustrated in the plan (see the
arrows on Governnment Exhibit 16). However, he did not testify to
havi ng observed the direction in which all of the pillars were
cut. Indeed, he did not testify to having observed the direction
in which any of the pillars were being cut. Also, his testinony
did not set forth any explanation which would tend to indicate
that, by virtue of the placenment of post in the areas observed
out by bl ocks one and three, as opposed to their placenent in the
area depicted in the plan, all pillars would then be m ned not
fromthe sane direction.

According to sketch 8, of the plan (Exhibit 5 supra) the
breaker tinbers that are to be installed, are to be placed in the
| ast open crosscut, outby the left side split. As observed by
Rhea, only the tinbers set at pillars two and four were in the

area illustrated on the plan, and the tinbers installed at
pillars one and three were outby the right side split rather than
the left. Accordingly, | conclude that Respondent did violate the

pl an as all eged.

According to Rhea, the breaker tinbers placed by Respondent
at the pillars one and three, did not provide "maxi muni' (Tr. 349)
support especially in the intersections between pillars one and
two, and three and four, respectively. According to Rhea, the
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| ack of support in an intersection results in a weakened roof,
and a greater danger of roof fall in the intersection. There is
no allegation by Petitioner that the breaker tinbers installed by
Respondent were inproperly installed, or were of a |esser
quantity or covered a |l esser area than that stipulated to by the
ventilation plan. It also would appear that the pillars installed
by Respondent, outby the right split of pillar No. 1 provided
support to the intersection between the |ast open crosscut and
Entry No. 5. Sinmilarly, it would appear that the tinbers
installed outby the right split of pillar No. 3 provided

additi onal support to the intersection between the | ast open
crosscut and Entry No. 3. | thus find the evidence insufficient
to establish that the violation was significant and substanti al

Rhea indicated in essence that in a discussion with Nicely,
he asked himif he understood the plan and he said "absolutely."
(Tr. 338). Rhea said that he asked Nicely why he pulled the
breaker tinmbers fromthe No. 2 and No. 4 entries, and Nicely told
himthat he (Nicely) had stored or dunped | oose materials
consi sting of rocks, mud and coal in the No. 1 and No. 5 entries.
Accordingly, Rhea's testinony indicates that Respondent's action
in not follow ng the plan was taken intentionally, and in spite
of its understanding of the requirenents of the plan. Respondent
did not adduce any testinony or documentary evidence to mtigate
its negligence, or to contradict or inpeach Rhea's testinony.
Accordingly, | find that the violation herein was as a result of
Respondent's unwarrantable failure (See, Enery supra).

I nasnuch as Rhea's testinony has indicated that failure to
provi de maxi mum roof support can lead to a roof fall, and since
the intersection between the | ast open crosscut, and entries two
and four had not received the naxi num support stipulated by the
pl an, | conclude that the gravity of the violation is noderately
hi gh. Further, | find that Respondent's negligence was high, and
that a penalty of $950 is appropriate for this violation

I V. Docket No. KENT 90-401

On April 30, 1990, Elijah Myers, an MSHA el ectrica
specialist inspected the electrical systens of Respondent's No. 4
M ne. He inspected a 480-volt three-phase generator and observed
that there was neither a ground field nor a grounding resistor
install ed. He observed that although there was a neutral wre, it
ended when the | ead cane out of the generator. He said that it
was "very evident" (Tr. 385) that a cable fromthe bolter was
attached to a wire fromthe generator. He also said that a ground
wire did not go to the roof bolter, and a pilot wire was not
hooked up going to the bolter. Myers issued Citation No. 3384008,
alleging a violation of 30 CF. R 0O 75.901.

Section 75.901, supra, provides in essence, that "Low and
medi um vol tage three phase alternating current circuits used
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underground shall contain either a direct or derived neutra

whi ch shall be grounded through a suitable resistor at the power
center, and a grounding circuit, . . . . " Mers testified that
the three phase circuit herein, was being used to power a

roof -bol ti ng machi ne, and there was no grounding i.e., neither a
ground field nor a ground resistor was provided. This testinony
was not inpeached or contradicted. Accordingly, | conclude that
Respondent herein did violate section 75.901, supra.

According to Myers, the absence of a ground field leads to a
hazard of electrocution, inasmuch as the anmount of current is not
di ssi pated, and accordingly, a person comng in contact with the
bolter, could contact 277 volts and be el ectrocuted. | hence find
the violation to be significant and substantial (See, WMathies,
supra).

Myers indicated that Gary Wl lians, Respondent's certified
el ectrical person, told himthat he had operated the roof-bolting
machi ne and had installed the generator. According to Myers
WIllianms said he knew that the generator was not installed right,
and, "knew all this stuff had to be on it." (Tr. 389). This
testi nony has been neither rebutted nor inpeached. | thus find
Respondent to have been highly negligent in connection with the
violation herein. Further, considering the gravity of this
violation, as contributing to the hazard of an el ectrocution, |
find that a penalty of $500 is appropriate.

I nasnuch as there was no breaker observed by Myers, he also
i ssued a section 104(a) citation, alleging a violation of 30
C.F.R 0O 75.900, which in essence, provides for the protection by
circuit breakers of power circuits serving three phase
alternating current equi pnent. Myers' testinony that a circuit
breaker was not present, was not contradicted or inpeached.
Hence, it must be concluded that Respondent did violate section
75. 900 supr a.

Myers expl ained that in the absence of a circuit breaker, in
the event of a overload, power would continue to flow, creating a
danger of electrocution. He indicated that if the roof bolter
woul d run over the cable, it would short out and put 277 volts on
of the frame of the bolter. He said that if the bolter would be
touched, the one touching it would be electrocuted. | concl ude
that the violation was significant and substantial. The
appropriate penalty for this violation, considering its gravity,
and the negligence of the Respondent as set forth above, infra,
is $500.

The testinony of Myers, which was not inpeached or
contradi cted, establishes that a ground nmonitor, to nmonitor the
ground wire to make sure it was not separated or broken, was not
in existence. Hence, | find that the citation in this regard
i ssued by Myers, alleging a violation of 30 CF. R 0O 75.902, was
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properly issued, as it has been established that there was no
fail safe ground check in violation of section 75.902, supra.
Essentially, for the reasons | set forth above, infra, | conclude
that the violation herein was significant and substanti al
Considering the gravity of this violation and the Respondent's
negli gence as set forth above, infra, | conclude that a penalty
of $500 is appropriate.

ORDER

It is ORDERED that:

(1) Citation No. 3391846 and Order No. 3376874 be amended to
reflect the fact that the violations set forth therein are not
signi ficant and substanti al

(2) Order No. 3377161 be DI SM SSED

(3) Respondent pay within 30 days of the date of this
deci sion $6,970 as a civil penalty for the violations found

her ei n.

Avram Wei sber ger
Adm ni strative Law Judge

Foot notes start here:-
1. Two |l ocations separated by approximately 100 feet.

2. The cited violative conditions were in four distinct
separate areas, and hence four citatinos were properly issued.

3. The order, which on its face alleges a violation of
section 75.1101, was nmodified on April 3, 1990, to show instead a
vi ol ati on of section 75.1100-3, supra.



